قواعد اللغة الانجليزية
من خلال

 (  جداول ميسره  )
بسم الله الرحمن الرحيم
نبدأ بتعريف الجملة في اللغة الإنجليزية

يقصد بالجملة في الانجليزية الأشياء التالية:

	Example
	Category
	النوع

	He is Saudi. We pray five times a day.               
	Statement
	العبارة

	Is he Saudi?  Do you study English?
	َQuestion
	السؤال

	Do not be late.                   
	Sleep early.                    
	Imperative, Instruction
	التعليمات

	What a nice weather it is!
	Exclamation
	التعجب


يتشابه بناء الجملة الانجليزية مع بنائها في الجملة الاسمية العربية.

يلعب ماجد الكرة عصر كل يوم.   جملة فعلية لأنها بدأت بفعل (يلعب)

ماجد يلعب الكرة عصر كل يوم.   جملة اسمية لأنها بدأت باسم (ماجد)

Majid plays football every afternoon.
..........................................................................................................................................................

· كيف أبدأ تكوين جملة؟

تبدأ الجملة بالفاعل و هو عبارة عن اسم أو ضمير
ثم الفعل و يكون اما متعدي أو لازم و يكون شكل الفعل جسب الزمن المراد استخدامه فيه.

اذا كان الفعل متعدياَ نضع المفعول به بعده مباشرةَ. و المفعول به لا يكون الا اسماَ أو ضميراَ

نكمل الجملة بأي اضافةِ يقتضيها الحال.

· ماذا يعني أن يكون الفعل متعديا أو لازماَ؟

الفعل المتعدي يقبل مفعولاَ به. 

مثال/ محمد يزور صديقه كل اسبوع.         فالفعل  (يزور) هنا يأخذ مفعول به ( صديقه)

الفعل اللازم لا يقبل مفعولاَ به. 

مثال/ سالم يجري في الملعب.              فالفعل (يجري) هنا لا يمكن أن يأخذ مفعول به.

· كيف يكون شكل الضمير عنما يكون فاعلاَ و عندما يكون مفعولاَ به

	  Objectمفعول به
	  Verb  فعل 
	 Subjectفاعل

	me
	
	I

	him
	
	He

	her
	
	She

	it
	
	It

	us
	
	We

	them
	
	They

	you
	
	You


Adjectives are words that describe nouns. Unlike Arabic, adjectives precede the nouns that they describe. 

الصفات هي كلمات تصف الأسماء. و تأتي الصفات قبل ألأسماء و هذا على عكس ما نجده في اللغة العربية.

Example

It is a delicious meal.

انها و جبة لذيذة
Adverbs are words that describe verbs. Similar to Arabic, Adverbs go after the verbs that they describe. 
الأحوال هي كلمات تصف الأفعال. و تأتي الأحوال بعد الأفعال و هذا مقارب لما نجده في اللغة العربية.

Example

Abdullah drives his car slowly.

يقود عبدالله سيارته ببطء
الأزمنة

· المضارع البسيط                                                     Simple Present Active Tense

صيغة تستخدم للحديث عن الأشياء التي تحدث كل يوم ، كل سنة، عادة ، حقيقة علمية الخ.....

شكل الفعل

· V1(s)
	played
	played
	play


نضع الـ   (s)اذا كان الفاعل He/She/It
	Example
	

	Majid plays football every afternoon.

We play football every afternoon.
	Affirmation

	Majid does not play football every afternoon.

We do not play football every afternoon.
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Negation

	Does Majid play football every afternoon?

Do we play football every afternoon?
	Yes/No question

	What does Majid play every afternoon?

What do we play every afternoon?
	W/h -question


· المضارع المستمر                                   Present Progressive Active Tense

صيغة تستخدم للحديث عن الأشياء التي حدثت في الزمن الماضي في زمن معلوم
شكل الفعل

· am/is/are +(V1+ing)
	written
	wrote
	write


	Example
	

	I am writing a letter now.

Majid is writing a letter at the moment.

They are writing letters.
	Affirmation

	I am not writing a letter now.

Majid is not writing a letter at the moment.

They are not writing letters at this time.
	Negation

	Am I writing a letter now?

Is Majid writing a letter at the moment?

Are they writing letters at this time?
	Yes/No question

	What am I writing now?

What is Majid writing at the moment?

What are they writing at this time?
	W/h -question


· المضارع التام                                   Present Perfect Active Tense
صيغة تستخدم للحديث عن الأشياء التي حدثت في الزمن الماضي في زمن  غير معلوم

شكل الفعل

· has/have +V3
	read
	read
	read


	Example
	

	Majid has read ten stories so far.

We have read nine stories up to now.
	Affirmation

	Majid has not read ten stories so far.

We have not read nine stories up to now.
	Negation

	Has Majid read ten stories so far?

Have we read nine stories up to now?
	Yes/No question

	How many stories has Majid read?

How many stories have we read?
	W/h -question


· الماضي البسيط                                   Past Simple Active Tense

صيغة تستخدم للحديث عن الأشياء التي حدثت في الزمن الماضي في زمن  معلوم

شكل الفعل

· V2
	seen
	saw
	see


	Example
	

	My brother saw a lion a week ago.
	Affirmation

	My brother did not see a lion a week ago.
	Negation

	Did my brother see a lion a week ago?
	Yes/No question

	What did my brother see a week ago?
	W/h -question


· ملاحظة: عندما نستخدم did  في السؤال/ النفي/ أو حتى التأكيد فان الفعل يكون في شكله الأول (المضارع)
· الماضي المستمر                                   Past Progressive Active Tense

صيغة تستخدم للحديث عن الأشياء التي حدثت و استمرت في الزمن الماضي و انتهت فيه.

شكل الفعل

· was/were + (V1+ing)
	swum
	swam
	swim


	Example
	

	My nephews were swimming when I arrived.
	Affirmation

	My nephews were not swimming when I arrived.
	Negation

	Were my nephews swimming when I arrived?
	Yes/No Question

	What were my nephews doing when I arrived?
	W/h -Question


· الماضي التام                                   Past Perfect Active Tense

صيغة تستخدم للحديث عن شيء حدث قبل حدثِ آخر في الزمن الماضي و انتهى الزمنان كلاهما فيه.

شكل الفعل

· had + V3
	had
	had
	has/have


	Example
	

	After he had had lunch, he slept.
	Affirmation

	He had not had lunch before he slept.
	Negation

	Had he had lunch before he slept?
	Yes/No Question

	What had he had before he slept?
	W/h -Question


مثال آخر

	eaten
	ate
	eat

	Example
	

	After he had eaten his meal, he went to the mosque.
	Affirmation

	He had not eaten his meal before he went to the mosque.
	Negation

	Had he eaten his meal before he went to the mosque?
	Yes/No Question

	What had he eaten before he went to the mosque?
	W/h -Question


الكلام المباشر والغير مباشر

Direct and Indirect Speech

عندما توجه جملة ( عبارة ، سؤال ، أمر أو نهي ، أو تعجب ) الى أحدِ ما، فان هذا كلام مباشر Direct Speech  

عندما يقوم هذا الشخص بنقل كلامك الى أحد آخر فهذا يسمى  Indirect Speech
                               مثال / ما هو اسمك؟                        (كلام مباشر)

سألني ما هو اسمي. ؟            (كلام غير مباشر)

                          مثال آخر / أنا أحب وطني.                       (كلام مباشر)

                              قال أنه يحب وطنه                   ( كلام غير مباشر)                                                
· تقرير العبارات Reporting Statements 

He is Saudi.                                  (Direct Speech)

He said that he was Saudi.             (Indirect Speech)

We like school.                              (Direct Speech) 

He said that they liked school.        (Indirect Speech) 

كما نلاحظ، يتغير الفعل من زمن الى آخر يليه

الجدول التالي يوضح تغير الزمن في الكلام المباشر و الغير مباشر

	Direct Speech
	
	
	Indirect Speech

	Simple Present
	
	
	Simple Past

	Present Progressive
	
	
	Past Progressive

	Present Perfect
	
	
	Past Perfect

	Simple Past
	
	
	Past Perfect

	Past Progressive
	
	
	Past Perfect Progressive

	Past Perfect 
	
	
	Past Perfect

	Present Perfect Progressive
	
	
	Past Perfect Progressive

	Will/can/ may/shall/must
	
	
	Would/could/might/should/ought to


ملاحظة هامة/ لا يتغير ترتيب الكلمات عند تقرير العبارات

Subject      verb       object.

He said that subject + verb + object
· تقرير الأسئلة Reporting Questions

تنقسم الآسئلة الى نوعين:

· الأسئلة التي تتطلب اجابتها اما نعم أو  لا.  Yes/No Questions  
مثال/ هل أنت محمد الكناني؟

Are Mohammed El-Kinnany?                                                   (Direct Speech)                       

He asked me if I was Mohammed El-Kinnany.                          (Indirect Speech)  

· الأسئلة التي تتطلب اجابتها معلومات Questions        Wh- 
مثال/ ما هو عملك؟

What is your occupation?                              (Direct Speech)

He asked me what my occupation was.          (Indirect Speech)  

لا حظ تغير ترتيب الكلمات من فعل + فاعل في السؤال الى فاعل + فعل في التقرير.

يستخدم الجدول السابق أيضا في تغيير الأزمنة.

يتغير الضمير  You  الىI   أو  we
Examples

 Where do you live?

He asked me where I lived.

Are you friends? 

He asked us if we were friends.
· تقرير التعليمات Reporting Instructions

Sit down here.

He told me to sit down there.
Move this chair.

He told me to move that chair.
Do not shout.
He told me not to shout.
Do not leave anything.

He told me not to leave anything.
· تقرير التعجب Reporting exclamations

	Direct Speech
	
	
	Indirect Speech

	What a nice day it is!
	ياله من يومِ جميل!
	
	He exclaimed what a nice day it was!

	What a kind man you are!
	يالك من رجل لطيف!
	
	He exclaimed what a kind man you was!

	What an expensive car it is!                    
	يالها من سيارة باهضة الثمن!
	(مضارع)
	He exclaimed what an expensive car it was!

	What an expensive car it was!                 
	يالها من سيارة باهضة الثمن كانت!
	(ماضي)
	He exclaimed what an expensive car it had been!

	What exciting stories they are!              

	يالها من قصص شيقة!


	(مضارع)
	He exclaimed what exciting stories they were!

	What exciting stories they were!            

	يالها من قصص شيقة كانت!


	(ماضي)
	He exclaimed what exciting stories they had been!

	what hot coffee it is
	يالها من قهوة ساخنة!
	
	He exclaimed what hot coffee it was!


نلاحظ عدم استخدام  a/an مع الجمع stories 
كما لا نستخدم اي منهما مع الاسماء التي لا تُجمع uncountable nouns  

كالمثال الأخير بالجدول أعلاه

تمارين:

 Report these:

Are they costly? ……………………………………………………….

Is that car American?  ………………………………………………

How much does it cost?  …………………………………………..

How often do you visit your friend?  …………………………………………………………….

I am not Libyan.  ……………………………………………………..

She visited her father last week.  ………………………………………………………………….

We were watching TV.  ……………………………………………………………………………….

Wake me up at five o'clock.  ………………………………………………………………………..

Do not disturb her.  …………………………………………………………………………………....

What a dangerous curve it is!  ……………………………………………………………………..

What unsafe curves they were!  …………………………………………………………………..

Questions that expect the answer yes:
عندا نسأل سؤالاَ و نحن نتوقع الاجاب بنعم ، فان السؤال يتكون من شقين

يكون الأول مثبتاَ و الآخر منفياَ

He is Japanese, isn't he?

They are mechanics, aren't they?

We were mistaken, weren't we?

She cleans her room every other day, doesn't she?

I visit several websites every day, don’t I?

He finished his work late, didn't he?
She has arranged every thing, hasn't she?

You have seen similar things, haven't you?
We can discuss that later, can't we?

They will begin soon, won't they?
Questions that expect the answer yes:
عندا نسأل سؤالاَ و نحن نتوقع الاجاب بلا ، فان السؤال يتكون من شقين ايضاَ

 و لكن الأول يكون منفياَ و الآخر  مثبتاَ.

He isn't Japanese, is he?
She doesn't clean her room every other day, does she?

She hasn't arranged every thing, has she?

We can't discuss that now, can we?

__________________________________________________________________________________
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The word some is used with affirmative ideas

تستخدم كلمة  some  مع الأفكار المثبتة بينما تستخدم كلمة any مع المنفي من الأفكار

We have some geography books.

I need some information about this machine

We do not have any difficulty.
They did not find anything wrong.


في الأسئلة التي نتوقع اجابتها بنعم نستخدم some بدلاَ من any
Can somebody open the door, please?
You look ill. Is there something wrong with you?
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بمعنى اما ........  أو ........  وليس الاثنان.

Our task ends either tomorrow or after tomorrow.  

سننهي مهمتنا اما غداَ أو بعد غد.

Someone may invite you to either dinner or lunch.

قد يدعوك شخص اما الى العشاءِ أم الى الغداء.
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المبني للمجهول

 PASSIVE VOICE

We use this structure when we do not know does the thing or when the doer is not important to us

نسخدم هذا التركيب عندما لا نعرف من قام بالفعل أو عندما لايهمنا الفاعل

نبدأ بالمفعول به  ليكون فاعلاَ للجملة ثم نتبع الجدول التالي :

	Active Voice
	Passive Voice
	المفعول يصبح فاعلاَ
	Verb الفعل
	Completion تكملة

	Simple Present
	
	
	am/is/are +V3
	

	I do my homework everyday.
	
	My homework
	is done
	Everyday.

	Present Progressive
	
	
	am/is/are +being +V3
	

	She is watching TV.
	
	TV
	is being watched
	by her.

	Present Perfect
	
	
	has/have + been+V3
	

	We have prepared everything.
	
	Everything
	has been prepared
	by us.

	Simple Past
	
	
	was/were +V3
	

	They visited us last night.
	
	We
	Were visited
	last night.

	Past Progressive
	
	
	was/were +being +V3
	

	He was writing a letter.
	
	A letter
	Was being written
	by him.

	Past Perfect
	
	
	had +V3
	

	By 2003, we had built a skyscraper
	
	A skyscraper
ناطحة سحاب
	had been built
	By us by 2003

	Will/can/ may/shall/must
	
	
	(will) + be + V3
	

	He may complain you.
	
	
	You may be complained.
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كلاهما يعنيان  (جداَ) و لكن استخداميهما يختلفان
We use very when we can do something. Too is used when something cannot be done.

نسخدم   very  مع الأفكار المثبتة و too  مع الأفكار المنفية

For instance:

I cannot move this box. It is too heavy.

The car was very expensive, but he made a decision to buy it. 
We played the match although the weather was very humid.
We could not attend the meeting. In fact, we were too late.
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انه بعيد لدرجة انني لا أراه.

It is so distant that I cannot see it.

The exam was so easy that we all passed

ان اللغز الامتحان كان سهلاَ لدرجة أننا جميعاَ اجتزناه.
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تستخدمها عندما نصف شيئاَ في الماضي كان يحدث ثم انتهى. وكان وقت حدوثه اما من وقت لآخر أو لفترة طويلة.

We use USED TO to describe something that happened in the past and ended there. It occurred either from time to time or for quite a long time.

I used to play basketball.

She used to live in Bombay.

Our ancestors used to travel on camels.
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التشبية الغير حقيقي باستخدام             
   ………… would were,
لو كنت مكانك، لسافرت الى ماليزيا.

If I were you, I would travel to Malaysia.

لو كانو مكاننا، لفعلوا الشيء نفسه.

If they were us, they would do the same.

1. What would you study if you were at university?  

2. What would you do if you were me? 
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الشرطية(if)
If + subject +present/past, ……………….will/would

ومعانيها 

· If + present + will = future

· If + past + would =  present 

أمثلة:


· If + present, ………..will

If he works hard, he will succeed.

اذا عمل جيداَ، فسوف ينجح. تعني هذه الجملة أنه من الممكن أن يعمل جيداَ  وبالتالي يمكن أن ينجح.

فالعمل و النجاح هنا يمكن حدوثهما مستقبلاَ

نفي الجملة السابقة
If he does not work hard, he will not succeed.

اذا لم يعمل جيداَ، فسوف لن  ينجح.

 تعني هذه الجملة أنه اذا لم يعمل جيداَ  فبالتالي لن ينجح.

فالنجاح يتحقق بالعمل. 


· If + past, ……….. would

If he worked hard, he would succeed.

لو عمل جيداَ، لنجح. تعني هذه الجملة أنه لم يعمل جيداَ  وبالتالي لم  ينجح.

فالعمل و النجاح هنا لم يحدثا. 

نفي الجملة السابقة
If he did not work hard, he would not succeed. 

لو لم يعمل جيداَ، لما نجح.

تعني هذه الجملة أنه لو لم يعمل جيداَ  لما نجح.

فالنجاح تحقق بالعمل. 



مضاعفة الحرف الأخير في الكلمة:

	vowel
	stressed
	double
	consonant
	syllable

	حرف علة (متحرك)
	عالي في النطق             
	يضاعف   
	حرف ساكن   
	مقطع او جزء من الكلمة    


	Do not double the last consonant if:

1. there are 2 vowels or 2 consonants.
train

training

drink
drinking

2. the last syllable is not stressed.

visit

visited

develop

developed

3. the word ends in (w-x-y)

know
knowing

fix
fixing

stay
staying


	Double the last consonant if:

1. the word has 1 syllable and ends in 1 vowel + 1 consonant.
run

running

big

bigger

rob     

 robbed

2. the word ends in stressed syllable.

control
controlled

begin
   beginning

prefer
  preferred

3. the word ends in 1 vowel + l

travel
travelled

 cancel
 cancelled

drop
dropped


	When we add one of these to a word:

	
	
	-ing
-er
-or
-ed
-est
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لواحق
Suffixes
الأصل في جمع الكلمات اضافة (s) الا اذا انتهت الكلمة بـاحدى هذه النهايات:

-sh,-ch,-s,-x,-z

و أحياناَ -o  

فاننا نضيف (e)قبل الـ(s)

	tomato
	fez
	mix
	bus
	teach
	crash

	tomatoes
	fezes
	mixes
	buses
	teaches
	crashes


· القاعدة اعلاه للجمع و لاضافة(s) المفرد الغائب.

ولكن هنالك استثناءات مع حرف الـ(o) منها

	video
	photo
	radio

	videos
	photos
	radios


القاعدة التالية
·  للجمع 
· و لاضافة(s) المفرد الغائب
·  و المقارنة (er) 
· و اسم التفضيل(est)
· و لاسم الفاعل (er)/(or)

اذا انتهت الكلمة بـ(y) ،فانه يكون مسبوقاَ اما بساكن أو بمتحرك.

· اذا كان مسبوقاَ بمتحرك فاننا نضيف (s) أو (er) او (est) أو (or) مباشرةَ بعد الـ(y).

	play
	grey
	coy
	say
	boy

	player
	greyest
	coyer
	says
	boys


اذا كان مسبوقاَ بساكن فاننا نغير (y) الى (i) ثم نضيف (s) أو (er) او (est) أو (or) أو (ness لصياغة بعض الأسماء) بعد الـ(i).

	lonely
	carry
	angry
	dry
	cry 
	country

	loneliness
	carrier
	angriest
	drier
	cries 
	countries
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اذا انتهت الكلمة بـ(e) فاننا نحذفها ونضيف (ing)

	rise
	give
	drive
	use
	write

	rising
	giving
	driving
	using
	writing


ويستثنى من ذلك الـ(e) المنطوقة مثل:

	flee
	be
	see

	fleeing
	being
	seeing


اذا انتهت الكلمة بـ(ie) فاننا نغيرهما الى(y) و نضيف الـ(ing)
	tie
	die
	lie

	tying
	dying
	lying
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ie or ei ?
نجد احيانا كلمات بها حرفان متتاليان وهما (ie) و كلمات أخرى بها (ei)  

مثال

  retrieve - receive
فما هي القاعدة؟
· نجد دائماَ (ei) بعد حرف الـ(c) ما عدا استثناءات قليلة مثل: 

ancient
بداية الكلمات مثل:

 eight 
· الكلمات التي ينطق فيها هذان الحرفان مثل نطق حرف (ِA)
	veil
	neighbor
	vein

	حجاب
	جار
	وريد


فهذه الكلمات تنطق على وزن كلمة (pain)
و هناك حالات شاذة مثل :

neither

· لاحظ الكلمات التالية تنطق مثل كلمة (keep)

piece – siege – mien – field – niece 


Mohammed Salym El- Kinnany

2004-04-25
                                                                       لكم ني أطيب الأمنيات
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